
LOCAL REVIEW BODY
MONDAY, 18 DECEMBER 2017

A MEETING of the LOCAL REVIEW BODY will be held in the COUNCIL CHAMBER, COUNCIL 

HEADQUARTERS, NEWTOWN ST BOSWELLS, TD6 0SA on MONDAY, 18 DECEMBER 2017 at 

10.00 am

J. J. WILKINSON,
Clerk to the Council,

11 December 2017

BUSINESS

1. Apologies for Absence. 

2. Order of Business. 

3. Declarations of Interest. 

4. Consider request for review of refusal of planning consent in respect 
of erection of dwellinghouse on land adjacent to Deanfoot Cottage, 
Deanfoot Road, West Linton. 17/00045/RREF. 17/00926/PPP. 

(a)  Notice of Review (Pages 3 - 
32)

Including:-
Decision Notice -  page 23
Consultations -     page 27

(b)  Officer's Report (Pages 33 - 
36)

(c)  List of Policies (Pages 37 - 
44)

5. Consider request for review of refusal of planning consent in respect 
of change of use of agricultural land to form storage yard and siting of 
7 No storage containers north east of Greenbraehead Farmhouse, 
Hawick. 17/00973/FUL. 17/00046/RREF. 

(a)  Notice of Review (Pages 45 - 
108)

Including:-
Decision Notice -  page 89
Officer’s Report  - page 91
Consultations    -  page 103

(b)  Papers referred to in Officer's Report (Pages 109 - 
124)

Public Document Pack



(c)  List of policies (Pages 125 - 
130)

6. Consider request for review of refusal of planning consent in respect 
of change of use from Class 1 (retail) to allow mixed use Class 2 
(podiatary clinic) and Class 1 (ancillary retail) at 40-41, The Square, 
Kelso. 17/01139/FUL. 17/00047/RREF. 

(a)  Notice of Review (Pages 131 - 
224)

Including:-
Decision Notice – page 201
Officer’s Report – page 203 

(b)  Papers referred to in Officer's Report (Pages 225 - 
244)

(c)  Consultations (Pages 245 - 
250)

(d)  Support comments (Pages 251 - 
256)

(e)  Additional representation (Pages 257 - 
258)

(f)  List of Policies (Pages 259 - 
264)

7. Any Other Items Previously Circulated 

8. Any Other Items which the Chairman Decides are Urgent 

NOTES
1. Timings given above are only indicative and not intended to inhibit Members’ 

discussions.

2. Members are reminded that, if they have a pecuniary or non-pecuniary interest in any 
item of business coming before the meeting, that interest should be declared prior to 
commencement of discussion on that item. Such declaration will be recorded in the 
Minute of the meeting.

Membership of Committee:- Councillors T. Miers (Chairman), S. Aitchison, A. Anderson, 
J. A. Fullarton, S. Hamilton, H. Laing, S. Mountford, C. Ramage and E. Small

Please direct any enquiries to Fiona Walling  01835 826504
email fwalling@scotborders.gov.uk



Page 3

Agenda Item 4a



Page 4



Page 5



Page 6



Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



P
age 11



T
his page is intentionally left blank



P
age 13



T
his page is intentionally left blank



P
age 15



T
his page is intentionally left blank



P
age 17



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



P
age 21



P
age 22



Page 23



Page 24



P
age 25



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



P
age 31



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Page 33

Agenda Item 4b



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



LIST OF POLICIES

Local Review Reference: 17/00045/RREF
Planning Application Reference: 17/00926/PPP
Development Proposal: Erection of dwellinghouse
Location: Land Adjacent Deanfoot Cottage, Deanfoot Road, West Linton 
Applicant: Mr & Mrs Peter Gardiner

SCOTTISH BORDERS LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2016

POLICY PMD2: QUALITY STANDARDS

All new development will be expected to be of high quality in accordance with sustainability 
principles, designed to fit with Scottish Borders townscapes and to integrate with its 
landscape surroundings.  The standards which will apply to all development are that:

Sustainability 
a) In terms of layout, orientation, construction and energy supply, the developer has 

demonstrated that appropriate measures have been taken to maximise the efficient 
use of energy and resources, including the use of renewable energy and resources 
such as District Heating Schemes and the incorporation of sustainable construction 
techniques in accordance with supplementary planning guidance.  Planning 
applications must demonstrate that the current carbon dioxide emissions reduction 
target has been met, with at least half of this target met through the use of low or 
zero carbon technology,

b)  it provides digital connectivity and associated infrastructure,
c) it provides for Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems in the context of overall 

provision of Green Infrastructure where appropriate and their after-care and 
maintenance,

d) it encourages minimal water usage for new developments,
e) it provides for appropriate internal and external provision for waste storage and 

presentation with, in all instances, separate provision for waste and recycling and, 
depending on the location, separate provision for composting facilities,

f) it incorporates appropriate hard and soft landscape works, including structural or 
screen planting where necessary, to help integration with its surroundings and the 
wider environment and to meet open space requirements. In some cases 
agreements will be required to ensure that landscape works are undertaken at an 
early stage of development and that appropriate arrangements are put in place for 
long term landscape/open space maintenance,

g)  it considers, where appropriate, the long term adaptability of buildings and spaces.

Placemaking & Design
h) It creates developments with a sense of place, based on a clear understanding of the 

context, designed in sympathy with Scottish Borders architectural styles; this need 
not exclude appropriate contemporary and/or innovative design,

i) it is of a scale, massing, height and density appropriate to its surroundings and, 
where an extension or alteration, appropriate to the existing building,

j) it is finished externally in materials, the colours and textures of which complement the 
highest quality of architecture in the locality and, where an extension or alteration, the 
existing building,

k) it is compatible with, and respects the character of the surrounding area, 
neighbouring uses, and neighbouring built form,

l) it can be satisfactorily accommodated within the site,
m) it provides appropriate boundary treatments to ensure attractive edges to the 

development that will help integration with its surroundings,
n)  it incorporates, where appropriate, adequate safety and security measures, in 

accordance with current guidance on ‘designing out crime’.

Page 37

Agenda Item 4c



LIST OF POLICIES

Accessibility 
o) Street layouts must be designed to properly connect and integrate with existing street 

patterns and be able to be easily extended in the future where appropriate in order to 
minimise the need for turning heads and isolated footpaths,

p) it incorporates, where required, access for those with mobility difficulties,
q) it ensures there is no adverse impact on road safety, including but not limited to the 

site access,
r) it provides for linkages with adjoining built up areas including public transport 

connections and provision for buses, and new paths and cycleways, linking where 
possible to the existing path network; Travel Plans will be encouraged to support 
more sustainable travel patterns,

s)  it incorporates adequate access and turning space for vehicles including those used 
for waste collection purposes.

Greenspace, Open Space & Biodiversity
t) It provides meaningful open space that wherever possible, links to existing open 

spaces and that is in accordance with current Council standards pending preparation 
of an up-to-date open space strategy and local standards. In some cases a 
developer contribution to wider neighbourhood or settlement provision may be 
appropriate, supported by appropriate arrangements for maintenance,

u) it retains physical or natural features or habitats which are important to the amenity or 
biodiversity of the area or makes provision for adequate mitigation or replacements.

Developers are required to provide design and access statements, design briefs and 
landscape plans as appropriate.

POLICY PMD4: DEVELOPMENT OUTWITH DEVELOPMENT BOUNDARIES

Where Development Boundaries are defined on Proposals Maps, they indicate the extent to 
which towns and villages should be allowed to expand during the Local Plan period.
Development should be contained within the Development Boundary and proposals for new 
development outwith this boundary, and not on allocated sites identified on the proposals 
maps, will normally be refused.

Exceptional approvals may be granted provided strong reasons can be given that:

a) it is a job-generating development in the countryside that has an economic 
justification under Policy ED7 or HD2, OR
b) it is an affordable housing development that can be justified under in terms of Policy 
HD1, OR
c) there is a shortfall identified by Scottish Borders Council through the housing land 
audit with regard to the provision of an effective 5 year housing land supply, OR
d) it is a development that it is considered would offer significant community benefits 
that outweigh the need to protect the Development Boundary.

AND the development of the site:

a) represents a logical extension of the built-up area, and
b) is of an appropriate scale in relation to the size of the settlement, and
c) does not prejudice the character, visual cohesion or natural built up edge of the 
settlement, and
d) does not cause a significant adverse effect on the landscape setting of the settlement 
or the natural heritage of the surrounding area.

Page 38



LIST OF POLICIES

The decision on whether to grant exceptional approvals will take account of:

a) any indicators regarding restrictions on, or encouragement of, development in the 
longer term that may be set out in the settlement profile;
b) the cumulative effect of any other developments outwith the Development Boundary 
within the current Local Plan period;
c) the infrastructure and service capacity of the settlement.

POLICY HD2: HOUSING IN THE COUNTRYSIDE

The Council wishes to promote appropriate rural housing development:

a) in village locations in preference to the open countryside where permission will only 
be granted in special circumstances on appropriate sites, 
b) associated with existing building groups where this does not adversely affect their 
character or that of the surrounding area, and
c) in dispersed communities in the Southern Borders housing market area.

These general principles in addition to the requirement for suitable roads access will be the
starting point for the consideration of applications for housing in the countryside, which will
be supplemented by Supplementary Planning Guidance / Supplementary Guidance on New
Housing in the Borders Countryside and on Placemaking and Design.

(A) BUILDING GROUPS

Housing of up to a total of 2 additional dwellings or a 30% increase of the building group,
whichever is the greater, associated with existing building groups may be approved provided
that:

a) the Council is satisfied that the site is well related to an existing group of at least 
three houses or building(s) currently in residential use or capable of conversion to residential 
use. Where conversion is required to establish a cohesive group of at least three houses, no 
additional housing will be approved until such conversion has been implemented,
b) the cumulative impact of new development on the character of the building group, 
and on the landscape and amenity of the surrounding area will be taken into account when 
determining new applications. Additional development within a building group will be refused 
if, in conjunction with other developments in the area, it will cause unacceptable adverse 
impacts,
c) any consents for new build granted under this part of this policy should not exceed 
two housing dwellings or a 30% increase in addition to the group during the Plan period. No 
further development above this threshold will be permitted.

In addition, where a proposal for new development is to be supported, the proposal should 
be appropriate in scale, siting, design, access, and materials, and should be sympathetic to 
the character of the group.

The calculations on building group size are based on the existing number of housing units
within the group as at the start of the Local Development Plan period. This will include those
units under construction or nearing completion at that point.

(B) DISPERSED BUILDINGS GROUPS

In the Southern Housing Market area there are few building groups comprising 3 houses
or more, and a more dispersed pattern is the norm. In this area a lower threshold may
be appropriate, particularly where this would result in tangible community, economic or

Page 39



LIST OF POLICIES

environmental benefits. In these cases the existence of a sense of place will be the primary
consideration.

Housing of up to 2 additional dwellings associated with dispersed building groups that meet
the above criteria may be approved provided that:

a) the Council is satisfied that the site lies within a recognised dispersed community in 
the Southern Borders housing market area,
b) any consents for new build granted under this part of this policy should not exceed 
two housing dwellings in addition to the group during the Plan period. No further 
development above this threshold will be permitted,
c) the design of housing will be subject to the same considerations as other types of  
housing in the countryside proposals.

(C) CONVERSIONS OF BUILDINGS TO A HOUSE

Development that is a change of use of a building to a house may be acceptable provided 
that:

a) the Council is satisfied that the building has architectural or historic merit, is capable 
of conversion and is physically suited for residential use,
b) the building stands substantially intact (normally at least to wallhead height) and the 
existing structure requires no significant demolition. A structural survey will be required 
where in the opinion of the Council it appears that the building may not be capable of 
conversion, and
c) the conversion and any proposed extension or alteration is in keeping with the scale 
and architectural character of the existing building.

(D) RESTORATION OF HOUSES

The restoration of a house may also be acceptable provided that the walls of the former 
residential property stand substantially intact (normally at least to wallhead height). In 
addition:

a) the siting and design reflects and respects the historical building pattern and the 
character of the landscape setting,
b) any proposed extension or alteration should be in keeping with the scale, form and 
architectural character of the existing or original building, and
c) significant alterations to the original character will only be considered where it can be 
demonstrated that these provide environmental benefits such as a positive contribution to 
the landscape and/or a more sustainable and energy efficient design.

(E) REPLACEMENT DWELLINGS

The proposed replacement of an existing house may be acceptable provided that:

a) the siting and design of the new building reflects and respects the historical building 
pattern and the character of the landscape setting,
b) the proposal is in keeping with the existing/original building in terms of its scale, 
extent, form and architectural character,
c) significant alterations to the original character of the house will only be considered 
where it can be demonstrated that these provide environmental benefits such as a positive 
contribution to the landscape and /or a more sustainable and energy efficient design.

(F) ECONOMIC REQUIREMENT

Page 40



LIST OF POLICIES

Housing with a location essential for business needs may be acceptable if the Council is
satisfied that:

a) the housing development is a direct operational requirement of an agricultural, 
horticultural, forestry or other enterprise which is itself appropriate to the countryside, and it 
is for a worker predominantly employed in the enterprise and the presence of that worker on-
site is essential to the efficient operation of the enterprise. Such development could include 
businesses that would cause disturbance or loss of amenity if located  within an existing 
settlement, or
b) it is for use of a person last employed in an agricultural, horticultural, forestry or other 
enterprise which is itself appropriate to the countryside, and also employed on the unit that is 
the subject of the application, and the development will release another house for continued 
use by an agricultural, horticultural, forestry or other enterprise which is itself appropriate to 
the countryside, and 
c) the housing development would help support a business that results in a clear social 
or environmental benefit to the area, including the retention or provision of employment or 
the provision of affordable or local needs housing, and
d) no appropriate site exists within a building group, and
e) there is no suitable existing house or other building capable of conversion for the 
required residential use.

In ALL instances in considering proposals relative to each of the policy sections above, there 
shall be compliance with the Council’s Supplementary Planning Guidance where it meets the 
terms of this policy and development must not negatively impact on landscape and existing 
communities. The cumulative effect of applications under this policy will be taken into 
account when determining impact.

POLICY HD3 – PROTECTION OF RESIDENTIAL AMENITY

Development that is judged to have an adverse impact on the amenity of existing or 
proposed residential areas will not be permitted. To protect the amenity and character of 
these areas, any developments will be assessed against:

a) the principle of the development, including where relevant, any open space that 
would be lost; and

b) the details of the development itself particularly in terms of:
(i) the scale, form and type of development in terms of its fit within a residential area,
(ii) the impact of the proposed development on the existing and surrounding properties 

particularly in terms of overlooking, loss of privacy and sunlighting provisions. These 
considerations apply especially in relation to garden ground or ‘backland’ 
development, 

(iii) the generation of traffic or noise,
(iv) the level of visual impact.

POLICY EP13: TREES, WOODLANDS AND HEDGEROWS

The Council will refuse development that would cause the loss of or serious damage to the 
woodland resource unless the public benefits of the development clearly outweigh the loss of 
landscape, ecological, recreational, historical, or shelter value.

Any development that may impact on the woodland resource should:

a) aim to minimise adverse impacts on the biodiversity value of the woodland resource, 
including its environmental quality, ecological status and viability; and

Page 41



LIST OF POLICIES

b) where there is an unavoidable loss of the woodland resource, ensure appropriate 
replacement planting, where possible, within the area of the Scottish Borders; and
c) adhere to any planning agreement sought to enhance the woodland resource.

POLICY IS2: DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS

Where a site is otherwise acceptable in terms of planning policy, but cannot proceed due to 
deficiencies in infrastructure and services or to environmental impacts, any or all of which 
will be created or exacerbated as a result of the development, the Council will require 
developers to make a full or partial contribution towards the cost of addressing such 
deficiencies.  

Contributions may be required for one or more of the following:

a) treatment of surface or foul waste water in accordance with the Plan’s policies on 
preferred methods (including SUDS maintenance);

b) provision of schools, school extensions or associated facilities, all in accordance with 
current educational capacity estimates and schedule of contributions; 

c) off-site transport infrastructure including new roads or road improvements, Safer 
Routes to School, road safety measures, public car parking, cycle-ways, bridges and 
associated studies and other access routes, subsidy to public transport operators; all 
in accordance with the relevant standards and the provisions of any Travel Plan;

d) leisure, sport, recreation, play areas and community facilities, either on-site or off-
site;

e) landscape, open space, allotment provision, trees and woodlands, including costs of 
future management and maintenance;

f) protection, enhancement and promotion of environmental assets either on-site or off-
site, having regard to the Local Biodiversity Action Plan and the Council’s 
Supplementary Planning Guidance on Biodiversity, including compensation for any 
losses and/or alternative provision;

g) provision of other facilities and equipment for the satisfactory completion of the 
development that may include: measures to minimise the risk of crime; provision for 
the storage, collection and recycling of waste, including communal facilities; provision 
of street furniture and digital connectivity with associated infrastructure.

Wherever possible, any requirement to provide developer contributions will be secured by 
planning condition.  Where a legal agreement is necessary, the preference for using an 
agreement under other legislation, for example the 1973 Local Government (Scotland) Act 
and the 1984 Roads (Scotland) Act will be considered.  A planning obligation will only be 
necessary where successors in title need to be bound by its terms. Where appropriate, the 
council will consider the economic viability of a proposed development, including possible 
payment options, such as staged or phased payments.

POLICY IS7: PARKING PROVISION AND STANDARDS

Development proposals should provide for car and cycle parking in accordance with 
approved standards. 

Relaxation of technical standards will be considered where appropriate due to the nature of 
the development and/or if positive amenity gains can be demonstrated that do not 
compromise road safety.

In town centres where there appear to be parking difficulties, the Council will consider the
desirability of seeking additional public parking provision, in the context of policies to  
promote the use of sustainable travel modes.

Page 42



LIST OF POLICIES

POLICY IS9: WASTE WATER TREATMENT STANDARDS AND SUSTAINABLE URBAN 
DRAINAGE

WASTE WATER TREATMENT STANDARDS
The Council’s preferred method of dealing with waste water associated with new 
development will be, in order of priority:

a) direct connection to the public sewerage system, including pumping if necessary, or 
failing that:
b) negotiating developer contributions with Scottish Water to upgrade the existing 
sewerage network and/or increasing capacity at the waste water treatment works, or failing 
that:
c) agreement with Scottish Water and SEPA where required to provide permanent or 
temporary alternatives to sewer connection including the possibility of stand alone treatment 
plants until sewer capacity becomes available, or, failing that:
d) for development in the countryside i.e. not within or immediately adjacent to publicly 
sewered areas, the use of private sewerage treatment may be acceptable, providing it can 
be demonstrated that this can be delivered without any negative impacts to public health, the 
environment or the quality of watercourses or groundwater.

In settlements served by the public foul sewer, permission for an individual private sewage 
treatment system will normally be refused unless exceptional circumstances prevail and the 
conditions in criteria (d) above can be satisfied.

Development will be refused if:
a) it will result in a proliferation of individual septic tanks or other private water treatment 
infrastructure within settlements,
b) it will overload existing mains infrastructure or it is impractical for the developer to 
provide for new infrastructure.

SUSTAINABLE URBAN DRAINAGE
Surface water management for new development, for both greenfield and brownfield sites, 
must comply with current best practice on sustainable urban drainage systems to the 
satisfaction of the council, Scottish Environment Protection Agency (where required), 
Scottish Natural Heritage and other interested parties where required. Development will be 
refused unless surface water treatment is dealt with in a sustainable manner that avoids 
flooding, pollution, extensive canalisation and culverting of watercourses. A drainage 
strategy should be submitted with planning applications to include treatment and flood 
attenuation measures and details for the long term maintenance of any necessary features.

OTHER MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS

 SBC Supplementary Planning Guidance on New Housing in the Borders Countryside 
2008

 SBC Supplementary Planning Guidance on Placemaking & Design 2010
 SBC Supplementary Planning Guidance on Development Contributions 2011
 SBC Supplementary Planning Guidance on Privacy and Sunlight 2006
 SBC Supplementary Planning Guidance on Trees and Development 2008

Page 43



LIST OF POLICIES

Page 44



Page 45

Agenda Item 5a



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



P
age 77



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



From:Peter Gibb
Sent:4 Sep 2017 11:48:17 +0100
To:Hayward, Julie
Subject:RE: Planning Application Ref 17/00973/FUL

REFERENCE EML-OUT/AT2944/20170904-113445-163

Julie

 

I have now had an opportunity to discuss the contents of your email below with my client and have 
added our response to each point in red text. I trust this is of assistance and will allow you to determine 
our Planning Application. Please do not hesitate to contact me if you require further information or 
clarification on any point below.

 

Regards

 

Peter

Peter Gibb
Senior Technician 

for and on behalf of
Aitken Turnbull Architects
9 Bridge Place, Galashiels, TD1 1SN
w: http://www.aitken-turnbull.co.uk
e: pgibb@aitken-turnbull.co.uk
t: 01896 752760 
 

Confidentiality Note: 

The information contained in this electronic mail is legally privileged and confidential, intended only for 
the use of the individual or entity named above. If the reader of this message is not the intended 
recipient, you are hereby notified that any dissemination, distribution, or copying of this communication 
is strictly prohibited. If you receive this communication in error, please notify us immediately by 
telephone +44 (0) 1896 752760 and return the original message to us at the above listed address via 
electronic mail.

 

Page 97

http://www.aitken-turnbull.co.uk/
mailto:pgibb@aitken-turnbull.co.uk
http://www.aitken-turnbull.co.uk/


Email communications cannot be guaranteed to be secure or error free as information could be 
intercepted, corrupted, lost, destroyed, delayed or incomplete, or contain viruses. Aitken Turnbull do 
not accept liability or responsibility for any errors or omissions in the contents of this message.

 

 

 

From: Hayward, Julie [mailto:JHayward2@scotborders.gov.uk] 
Sent: 30 August 2017 11:39
To: Peter Gibb <pgibb@aitken-turnbull.co.uk>
Subject: RE: Planning Application Ref 17/00973/FUL

 

Hi

 

I have now had an opportunity to consider this application and to visit the site.  You will note that the 
Roads Planning Service can now support the proposal, subject to conditions regarding the upgrading of 
the access track and formation of passing places.

 

I just require clarification on a number of issues:

 

         What will the containers be used for once positioned on the site?  Will they be for the sole use 
for the applicant or leased out to other parties?  What will be stored within the containers?

 

The storage containers may be used by the applicant however the applicant has indicated he may 
wish to lease the containers out to other parties requiring long term storage. At this juncture it is 
not known exactly what will be stored within the containers however the applicant envisages items 
such as surplus household furniture / house clearance items being stored. The applicant has 
indicated that no flammable, explosive, corrosive, hazardous or dangerous materials will be stored 
within the storage containers and will make this a requirement to anyone leasing a container. � PG 
04/09/2017

 

Page 98



         The applicant has planning permission for storage containers on the site in commercial Road.  
Why can�t the containers be moved from the site in Victoria Road to the site in Commercial 
Road that benefits from planning permission?

 

The applicant currently has the site in Commercial Road on the market for sale and has had interest 
from a potential purchaser. The applicant has indicated he would rather sell the site in Commercial 
Road and no longer wishes to develop the site himself therefore repositioning the containers from 
Victoria Road to the Commercial Road site is no longer an option. � PG 04/09/2017

 

         Policy ED7 supports proposals for business development in the countryside if it can be justified 
that they require a countryside location, are appropriate to the rural character of the area and 
cannot be accommodated within a settlement.  This application seeks to change the use of the 
site to commercial/storage.  There is nothing within the Supporting Statement that sets out why 
this use, especially the storage container element, requires a countryside location and can�t be 
accommodated within a settlement (for example, the site in Commercial Road)?  The proposal 
would appear to be contrary to this policy.

 

I note you refer to the proposed use as commercial/storage however the applicant has no intention 
to trade or sell any goods from the site and intends the site to be used as a storage yard only. The 
yard is currently an agricultural stack / storage yard and is used to store agricultural vehicles such as 
equine lorrys & hay/straw trailers which are of similar scale and mass to the proposed storage 
containers. It is not envisaged that the storage containers will require to be accessed on a frequent 
basis therefore the vehicular access to and from the site will not conflict with its current use or have 
any adverse impact on the immediate neighbours. The applicant has indicated the storage yard 
element will be used to store caravans and camper vans during the off holiday period. These will 
more than likely only be used for a short time each year and will sit dormant for the remainder of 
the time and will not require frequent visits for maintenance. We feel the nature of the proposal is 
appropriate to a semi-rural location. � PG 04/09/2017

 

         If the application is supported it is likely that the planning permission would be for a temporary 
period of 3 years to enable the Council to monitor the site.

 

Noted and agreed. If the application is approved for a temporary period will the applicant require to 
reapply for continued use after this 3 year period? � PG 04/09/2017

Page 99



 

I would welcome your comments.

 

Thanks

 

Julie

 

Julie Hayward

Team Leader 

Development Management

Regulatory Services

Scottish Borders Council

Tel: 01835 825585

E-mail: jhayward2@scotborders.gov.uk

 

Please do not print this e-mail unless absolutely necessary - SAVE PAPER

 

Find out more about Scottish Borders Council: Web | Twitter | Facebook | Flickr | YouTube

 

From: Peter Gibb [mailto:pgibb@aitken-turnbull.co.uk] 
Sent: 21 August 2017 16:31
To: Grigor, Paul
Cc: Hayward, Julie
Subject: Planning Application Ref 17/00973/FUL

 

REFERENCE EML-OUT/AT2944/20170821-160609-416

Paul

Page 100

mailto:jhayward2@scotborders.gov.uk
http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/
twitter.com/scotborders
http://www.facebook.com/sbcouncil
http://www.flickr.com/scottishborderscouncil
http://www.youtube.com/scotborderscouncil
mailto:pgibb@aitken-turnbull.co.uk


 

With reference to your consultation response dated 3rd August in connection with the above Planning 
Application and our subsequent conversation please find attached updated Site Plan drawing AT2944-L(-
1)101A incorporating details of the proposed upgrading to the private access track. I have also added a 
note regarding the provision of passing places at intervals along the access track and indicated these on 
drawing AT2944-Loc-A.

 

I trust this addresses the concerns raised in your consultation response and will allow you to support our 
application. Please do not hesitate to contact me if you would like to discuss any of this in more detail.

 

Regards

 

Peter

 

Peter Gibb
Senior Technician 

for and on behalf of
Aitken Turnbull Architects
9 Bridge Place, Galashiels, TD1 1SN
w: http://www.aitken-turnbull.co.uk
e: pgibb@aitken-turnbull.co.uk
t: 01896 752760 
 

Confidentiality Note: 

The information contained in this electronic mail is legally privileged and confidential, intended only for 
the use of the individual or entity named above. If the reader of this message is not the intended 
recipient, you are hereby notified that any dissemination, distribution, or copying of this communication 
is strictly prohibited. If you receive this communication in error, please notify us immediately by 
telephone +44 (0) 1896 752760 and return the original message to us at the above listed address via 
electronic mail.

Email communications cannot be guaranteed to be secure or error free as information could be 
intercepted, corrupted, lost, destroyed, delayed or incomplete, or contain viruses. Aitken Turnbull do 
not accept liability or responsibility for any errors or omissions in the contents of this message.

 

Page 101

http://www.aitken-turnbull.co.uk/
mailto:pgibb@aitken-turnbull.co.uk
http://www.aitken-turnbull.co.uk/


"**********************************************************************
This email and any files transmitted with it are privileged, confidential and 
subject to copyright. Any unauthorised use or disclosure of any part of this 
email is prohibited. If you are not the intended recipient please inform the 
sender immediately; you should then delete the email and remove any copies 
from your system.
The views or opinions expressed in this communication may not necessarily be 
those of Scottish Borders Council.
Please be advised that Scottish Borders Council's incoming and outgoing email 
is subject to regular monitoring and any email may require to be disclosed by 
the Council under the provisions of the Freedom of Information (Scotland) Act 
2002 .  
**********************************************************************"
 
 

 

This email has been scanned for spam and viruses by Proofpoint Essentials. Click here to report this 
email as spam.

 

Page 102

https://us4.proofpointessentials.com/index01.php?mod_id=11&mod_option=logitem&mail_id=1504089537-pZzypUtGjRVK&r_address=pgibb%40aitken-turnbull.co.uk&report=1


 

Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA 
Customer Services:  0300 100 1800    www.scotborders.gov.uk  

 

PLANNING CONSULTATION 
 
To:        Economic Development Section 
 
From:      Development  Management Date:   10th July 2017 
 
Contact:  Julie Hayward       01835 825585  Ref:  17/00973/FUL 
  

PLANNING CONSULTATION 
 
Your observations are requested on the under noted planning application. I shall be glad to have 
your reply not later than 31st July 2017, If further time will be required for a reply please let me 
know. If no extension of time is requested and no reply is received by 31st July 2017, it will be 
assumed that you have no observations and a decision may be taken on the application. 
 
Please remember to e-mail the DCConsultees Mailbox when you have inserted your reply 
into Idox. 
 
Name of Applicant:  Bayhill Farming Ltd  
  
Agent:  Aitken Turnbull Architects Ltd 
    
Nature of Proposal:  Change of use of agricultural land to form storage yard and siting of 7 No 
storage containers 
Site:  Land North East Of Greenbraehead Farmhouse Hawick Scottish Borders    
_________________________________________________________________________ 
 
OBSERVATIONS OF: Economic Development Section 
 
CONSULTATION REPLY 
 
This would appear to be a diversification of an agricultural business and assume it is to 
support a demand from householders.  The site appears set back such that it will not be 
substantially visible from the public road.  The Economic Development section has no 
objections. 
 

Page 103



 Consultation Reply    
ENVIRONMENT AND INFRASTRUCTURE 

 
To: HEAD OF PLANNING AND REGULATORY SERVICE 
 
FAO:  Julie Hayward  Your Ref: 17/00973/FUL 
 
From: HEAD OF ENGINEERING & INFRASTRUCTURE Date: 26th July 2017 
 
Contact:      Lauren Addis Ext: 6517 Our Ref: B48/2382 
 
 
Nature of Proposal:  Change of use of agricultural land to form storage yard and siting of 7 No 

storage containers 
Site:  Land North East Of Greenbraehead Farmhouse Hawick Scottish Borders    
 
 
In terms of information that this Council has concerning flood risk to this site, I would state that The 
Indicative River, Surface Water & Coastal Hazard Map (Scotland) known as the “third generation flood 
mapping” prepared by SEPA indicates that the site is at risk from a flood event with a return period of 1 
in 200 years. That is the 0.5% annual risk of a flood occurring in any one year. 
 
The Indicative River & Coastal Flood Map (Scotland) has primarily been developed to provide a strategic 
national overview of flood risk in Scotland. Whilst all reasonable effort has been made to ensure that 
the flood map is accurate for its intended purpose, no warranty is given.  
 
Due to copyright restrictions I cannot copy the map to you however, if the applicant wishes to inspect 
the maps they can contact me to arrange a suitable time to come in and view them. 
 
Review of the application shows that the proposed site (or parts thereof) is within the 1 in 200 
year (0.5% annual probability) flood extent and may be at medium to high risk of flooding. The 
risk to the proposed site is from surface water flooding only.  Notwithstanding the above this is 
a small scale development that is unlikely to affect local flooding problems and I would not 
oppose it on flooding grounds.  
 
I would recommend that the applicant adopts water resilient materials and construction 
methods as appropriate in the development and that the applicant review the Online Planning 
Advice on Flood Risk.  
 
The applicant should be made aware that flooding can occur from other sources including run-
off from surrounding land, blocked road drains, surcharging sewers and blocked bridges and 
culverts. I would also recommend that, to receive flood warnings from SEPA, the applicant 
signs up to FLOODLINE at www.sepa.org.uk or by telephone on 0845 988 1188.  
.  
 

Page 104



Please note that this information must be taken in the context of material that this Council holds in 
fulfilling its duties under the Flood Risk Management (Scotland) Act 2009. 
 
 
Lauren Addis 
Technician 
Flood Risk & Coastal Management 
 

Page 105



REGULATORY SERVICES 
 

 
 

 

 
To: Development Management Service Date:     11th June  2017 
 FAO Julie Hayward , Council H. Q. 
 
From: Outdoor Access Officer    
Contact: S Gray  Ext:      2603 Ref:    17/00973/FUL 
 

PLANNING CONSULATION REPLY 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
Nature of Proposal:  Change of use of agricultural land to form storage yard  
 and siting of 7 No storage containers 
Site:  Land North East Of Greenbraehead Farmhouse Hawick Scottish Borders 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
Thank you for the request for a consultation response. This response is in relation to 
Outdoor Countryside Access  
 
Public Road 
In relation to existing and new vehicle access to and from the public road(s) then this is a 
matter for Roads Planning who should also be consulted. 
 
Core paths, Promoted paths and Rights of way  
 
According to records held in the Regulatory Services there are rights of way adjacent to 
this proposed development on the existing Farm tracks to the West and North of the 
proposed location of change of use.  
 
As shown on the adjacent maps these routes BR117 and BR116 adjacent to the site are 
currently shared use with agricultural use and walkers, cyclists and horse riders.  
 
Please note that Scottish Borders Council does not have a definitive record of every 
claimed right of way within its area. The Scottish Rights of Way and Access Society, the 
community council and local residents may have evidence of existence of claimed rights of 
way that have not yet been recorded by SBC 
 
Rights of Way are protected by law under the Countryside (Scotland) Act 1967 sec. 46 ‘It 
shall be the duty of a planning authority to assert, protect, and keep open and free from 
obstruction or encroachment any public right of way which is wholly or partly within their 
area. 
 
There is no objection to this proposal re Countryside access. 
 
The adjacent routes Rights of Way BR117 and BR116 should be kept open and free of 
obstruction before during and after construction.  Therefore, if the proposal is granted 
planning permission then any gates into the property must open into the property and not 
outwards into the line of the users of the routes. The routes will not form part of the 
curtilage of the proposed development. 
 
Susan Gray 
Outdoor  Access  

Page 106



REGULATORY SERVICES 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

Page 107



REGULATORY 
SERVICES 
 

 
 

 

 
To: Development Management Service Date: 3 Aug 2017 
 FAO Julie Hayward 
 
 
From: Roads Planning Service   
Contact: Paul Grigor Ext:  6663 Ref: 17/00973/FUL 
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Subject: Change of use of agricultural land to form storage yard and 

siting of 7 No. storage containers 
 Land North East of Greenbraehead Farmhouse, Hawick 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Whilst I have no objections in principle to this proposal, I am concerned over the current 
state of the private track which is to be the main access to the storage yard. At present the 
current running surface is such that it is unsuitable for a domestic vehicle and I would not 
want to support any development which would increase vehicular movements along this 
track. During my site visit I was unable to drive all the way down the track due to the state 
of the running surface and had to turn back. 
 
In order for me to look more favourably on this proposal, a scheme of details would have 
to be submitted for approval which would detail all the works involved with upgrading the 
track to provide a smooth running surface. 
 
Until the above point is satisfactorily addressed I must withhold my support for this 
proposal. 
 
AJS 
 

Page 108



Page 109

Agenda Item 5b



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



Page 123



Page 124



LIST OF POLICIES

Local Review Reference: 17/00046/RREF
Planning Application Reference: 17/00973/FUL
Development Proposal:  Change of use of agricultural land to form storage yard and siting 
of 7 No storage containers
Location: Land North East of Greenbraehead Farmhouse, Hawick
Applicant: Bayhill Farming Ltd

SCOTTISH BORDERS LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2016

POLICY PMD1: SUSTAINABILITY

In determining planning applications and preparing development briefs, the Council will have 
regard to the following sustainability principles which underpin all the Plan’s policies and 
which developers will be expected to incorporate into their developments:

a) the long term sustainable use and management of land
b) the preservation of air and water quality
c) the protection of natural resources, landscapes, habitats, and species
d) the protection of built and cultural resources
e) the efficient use of energy and resources, particularly non-renewable resources
f) the minimisation of waste, including waste water and encouragement to its 
sustainable management
g) the encouragement of walking, cycling, and public transport in preference to the 
private car
h) the minimisation of light pollution
i) the protection of public health and safety
j) the support to community services and facilities
k) the provision of new jobs and support to the local economy
l) the involvement of the local community in the design, management and improvement 
of their environment

POLICY PMD2: QUALITY STANDARDS

All new development will be expected to be of high quality in accordance with sustainability 
principles, designed to fit with Scottish Borders townscapes and to integrate with its 
landscape surroundings.  The standards which will apply to all development are that:

Sustainability 
a) In terms of layout, orientation, construction and energy supply, the developer has 

demonstrated that appropriate measures have been taken to maximise the efficient 
use of energy and resources, including the use of renewable energy and resources 
such as District Heating Schemes and the incorporation of sustainable construction 
techniques in accordance with supplementary planning guidance.  Planning 
applications must demonstrate that the current carbon dioxide emissions reduction 
target has been met, with at least half of this target met through the use of low or 
zero carbon technology,

b) it provides digital connectivity and associated infrastructure,
c) it provides for Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems in the context of overall 

provision of Green Infrastructure where appropriate and their after-care and 
maintenance,

d) it encourages minimal water usage for new developments,
e) it provides for appropriate internal and external provision for waste storage and 

presentation with, in all instances, separate provision for waste and recycling and, 
depending on the location, separate provision for composting facilities,

Page 125

Agenda Item 5c



LIST OF POLICIES

f) it incorporates appropriate hard and soft landscape works, including structural or 
screen planting where necessary, to help integration with its surroundings and the 
wider environment and to meet open space requirements. In some cases 
agreements will be required to ensure that landscape works are undertaken at an 
early stage of development and that appropriate arrangements are put in place for 
long term landscape/open space maintenance,

g) it considers, where appropriate, the long term adaptability of buildings and spaces.

Placemaking & Design
h) It creates developments with a sense of place, based on a clear understanding of the 

context, designed in sympathy with Scottish Borders architectural styles; this need 
not exclude appropriate contemporary and/or innovative design,

i) it is of a scale, massing, height and density appropriate to its surroundings and, 
where an extension or alteration, appropriate to the existing building,

j) it is finished externally in materials, the colours and textures of which complement the 
highest quality of architecture in the locality and, where an extension or alteration, the 
existing building,

k) it is compatible with, and respects the character of the surrounding area, 
neighbouring uses, and neighbouring built form,

l) it can be satisfactorily accommodated within the site,
m) it provides appropriate boundary treatments to ensure attractive edges to the 

development that will help integration with its surroundings,
n) it incorporates, where appropriate, adequate safety and security measures, in 

accordance with current guidance on ‘designing out crime’.

Accessibility 
o) Street layouts must be designed to properly connect and integrate with existing street 

patterns and be able to be easily extended in the future where appropriate in order to 
minimise the need for turning heads and isolated footpaths,

p) it incorporates, where required, access for those with mobility difficulties,
q) it ensures there is no adverse impact on road safety, including but not limited to the 

site access,
r) it provides for linkages with adjoining built up areas including public transport 

connections and provision for buses, and new paths and cycleways, linking where 
possible to the existing path network; Travel Plans will be encouraged to support 
more sustainable travel patterns,

s) it incorporates adequate access and turning space for vehicles including those used 
for waste collection purposes.

Greenspace, Open Space & Biodiversity
t) It provides meaningful open space that wherever possible, links to existing open 

spaces and that is in accordance with current Council standards pending preparation 
of an up-to-date open space strategy and local standards. In some cases a 
developer contribution to wider neighbourhood or settlement provision may be 
appropriate, supported by appropriate arrangements for maintenance,

u) it retains physical or natural features or habitats which are important to the amenity or 
biodiversity of the area or makes provision for adequate mitigation or replacements.

Developers are required to provide design and access statements, design briefs and 
landscape plans as appropriate.

POLICY ED7: BUSINESS, TOURISM AND LEISURE IN THE COUNTRYSIDE

Proposals for business, tourism or leisure development in the countryside will be approved 
and rural diversification initiatives will be encouraged provided that:

Page 126



LIST OF POLICIES

a) the development is to be used directly for agricultural, horticultural or forestry 
operations, or for uses which by their nature are appropriate to the rural character of 
the area; or

b) the development is to be used directly for leisure, recreation or tourism appropriate to 
a countryside location and, where relevant, it is in accordance with the Scottish 
Borders Tourism Strategy and Action Plan;

c) the development is to be used for other business or employment generating uses, 
provided that the Council is satisfied that there is an economic and/or operational need 
for the particular countryside location, and that it cannot be reasonably be 
accommodated within the Development Boundary of a settlement.

In addition the following criteria will also be considered:

a) the development must respect the amenity and character of the surrounding area,
b) the development must have no significant adverse impact on nearby uses, 

particularly housing,
c) where a new building is proposed, the developer will be required to provide evidence 

that no appropriate existing building or brownfield site is available, and where 
conversion of an existing building of architectural merit is proposed, evidence that the 
building is capable of conversion without substantial demolition and rebuilding,

d) the impact of the expansion or intensification of uses, where the use and scale of 
development are appropriate to the rural character of the area, 

e) the development meets all other siting, and design criteria in accordance with Policy 
PMD2, and

f) the development must take account of accessibility considerations in accordance 
with Policy IS4.

Where a proposal comes forward for the creation of a new business including that of a 
tourism proposal, a business case that supports the proposal will be required to be 
submitted as part of the application process.

POLICY HD3: PROTECTION OF RESIDENTIAL AMENITY

Development that is judged to have an adverse impact on the amenity of existing or 
proposed residential areas will not be permitted. To protect the amenity and character of 
these areas, any developments will be assessed against:

a) the principle of the development, including where relevant, any open space that 
would be lost; and

b) the details of the development itself particularly in terms of:
(i) the scale, form and type of development in terms of its fit within a residential area,
(ii) the impact of the proposed development on the existing and surrounding properties 

particularly in terms of overlooking, loss of privacy and sunlighting provisions. These 
considerations apply especially in relation to garden ground or ‘backland’ 
development, 

(iii) the generation of traffic or noise,
(iv) the level of visual impact.

POLICY IS5: PROTECTION OF ACCESS ROUTES

Development that would have an adverse impact upon an access route available to the 
public will not be permitted unless a suitable diversion or appropriate alternative route, as 
agreed by the Council, can be provided by the developer.

Page 127



LIST OF POLICIES

POLICY IS7: PARKING PROVISIONS AND STANDARDS

Development proposals should provide for car and cycle parking in accordance with 
approved standards. 

Relaxation of technical standards will be considered where appropriate due to the nature of 
the development and/or if positive amenity gains can be demonstrated that do not 
compromise road safety.

In town centres where there appear to be parking difficulties, the Council will consider the
desirability of seeking additional public parking provision, in the context of policies to  
promote the use of sustainable travel modes.

POLICY IS8: FLOODING

At all times, avoidance will be the first principle of managing flood risk. In general terms, new 
development should therefore be located in areas free from significant flood risk. 
Development will not be permitted if it would be at significant risk of flooding from any source 
or would materially increase the probability of flooding elsewhere. The ability of functional 
flood plains to convey and store floodwater should be protected, and development should be 
located away from them.

Within certain defined risk categories, particularly where the risk is greater than 0.5% annual
flooding probability or 1 in 200 year flood risk, some forms of development will generally not
be acceptable. These include:

a) development comprising essential civil infrastructure such as hospitals, fire
stations, emergency depots etc., schools, care homes, ground-based electrical and
telecommunications equipment unless subject to an appropriate long term flood risk
management strategy;
b) additional built development in undeveloped and sparsely developed areas.
Other forms of development will be subject to an assessment of the risk and mitigation
measures.
Developers will be required to provide, including if necessary at planning permission in
principle stage:
a) a competent flood risk assessment, including all sources of flooding, and taking account 
of
climate change; and
b) a report of the measures that are proposed to mitigate the flood risk.
The information used to assess the acceptability of development will include:
a) information and advice from consultation with the council’s flood team and the Scottish
Environment Protection Agency;
b) flood risk maps provided by the Scottish Environment Protection Agency which indicate 
the
extent of the flood plain;
c) historical records and flood studies held by the council and other agencies, including past
flood risk assessment reports carried out by consultants and associated comments from
the Scottish Environment Protection Agency, also held by the council;
(d) the Scottish Environment Protection Agency’s Land Use Vulnerability Guidance.

OTHER MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS

 Scottish Planning Policy 2014
 PAN 73 Rural Diversification

Page 128



LIST OF POLICIES

 SBC Supplementary Planning Guidance on Placemaking & Design 2010
 SBC Supplementary Planning Guidance on Privacy and Sunlight 2006

Page 129



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 131

Agenda Item 6a



Page 132



Page 133



Page 134



Page 135



Page 136



Page 137



Page 138



Page 139



Page 140



Page 141



Page 142



Page 143



Page 144



Page 145



Page 146



Page 147



Page 148



Page 149



Page 150



Page 151



Page 152



Page 153



Page 154



Page 155



Page 156



Page 157



Page 158



Page 159



Page 160



Page 161



Page 162



Page 163



Page 164



Page 165



Page 166



Page 167



Page 168



P
age 169



P
age 170



Page 171



Page 172



Page 173



Page 174



Page 175



Page 176



Page 177



Page 178



Page 179



Page 180



Page 181



Page 182



Page 183



Page 184



Page 185



Page 186



Page 187



Page 188



Page 189



Page 190



Page 191



Page 192



Page 193



Page 194



Page 195



Page 196



Page 197



Page 198



Page 199



Page 200



Page 201



Page 202



Page 203



Page 204



Page 205



Page 206



Page 207



Page 208



Page 209



Page 210



Page 211



Page 212



Page 213



Page 214



Page 215



Page 216



Page 217



Page 218



Page 219



Page 220



Page 221



Page 222



Page 223



Page 224



Page 225

Agenda Item 6b



Page 226



Page 227



Page 228



Page 229



Page 230



Page 231



Page 232



Page 233



Page 234



Page 235



Page 236



Page 237



Page 238



Page 239



Page 240



Page 241



Page 242



Page 243



Page 244



Page 245

Agenda Item 6c



Page 246



Page 247



Page 248



Page 249



Page 250



Page 251

Agenda Item 6d



Page 252



Page 253



Page 254



Page 255



Page 256



Page 257

Agenda Item 6e



This page is intentionally left blank



LIST OF POLICIES

Local Review Reference: 17/00047/RREF
Planning Application Reference: 17/01139/FUL
Development Proposal:  Change of use from Class 1 Retail to allow Mixed Use Class 2 
(Podiatry Clinic) and Class 1 (Ancilliary Retail)
Location: 40-41 The Square, Kelso
Applicant: Mr Robert McCririck

SCOTTISH BORDERS LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2016

POLICY PMD1: SUSTAINABILITY

In determining planning applications and preparing development briefs, the Council will have 
regard to the following sustainability principles which underpin all the Plan’s policies and 
which developers will be expected to incorporate into their developments:

a) the long term sustainable use and management of land
b) the preservation of air and water quality
c) the protection of natural resources, landscapes, habitats, and species
d) the protection of built and cultural resources
e) the efficient use of energy and resources, particularly non-renewable resources
f) the minimisation of waste, including waste water and encouragement to its 
sustainable management
g) the encouragement of walking, cycling, and public transport in preference to the 
private car
h) the minimisation of light pollution
i) the protection of public health and safety
j) the support to community services and facilities
k) the provision of new jobs and support to the local economy
l) the involvement of the local community in the design, management and improvement 
of their environment

POLICY PMD2: QUALITY STANDARDS

All new development will be expected to be of high quality in accordance with sustainability 
principles, designed to fit with Scottish Borders townscapes and to integrate with its 
landscape surroundings.  The standards which will apply to all development are that:

Sustainability 
a) In terms of layout, orientation, construction and energy supply, the developer has 

demonstrated that appropriate measures have been taken to maximise the efficient 
use of energy and resources, including the use of renewable energy and resources 
such as District Heating Schemes and the incorporation of sustainable construction 
techniques in accordance with supplementary planning guidance.  Planning 
applications must demonstrate that the current carbon dioxide emissions reduction 
target has been met, with at least half of this target met through the use of low or 
zero carbon technology,

b) it provides digital connectivity and associated infrastructure,
c) it provides for Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems in the context of overall 

provision of Green Infrastructure where appropriate and their after-care and 
maintenance,

d) it encourages minimal water usage for new developments,
e) it provides for appropriate internal and external provision for waste storage and 

presentation with, in all instances, separate provision for waste and recycling and, 
depending on the location, separate provision for composting facilities,

Page 259

Agenda Item 6f



LIST OF POLICIES

f) it incorporates appropriate hard and soft landscape works, including structural or 
screen planting where necessary, to help integration with its surroundings and the 
wider environment and to meet open space requirements. In some cases 
agreements will be required to ensure that landscape works are undertaken at an 
early stage of development and that appropriate arrangements are put in place for 
long term landscape/open space maintenance,

g) it considers, where appropriate, the long term adaptability of buildings and spaces.

Placemaking & Design
h) It creates developments with a sense of place, based on a clear understanding of the 

context, designed in sympathy with Scottish Borders architectural styles; this need 
not exclude appropriate contemporary and/or innovative design,

i) it is of a scale, massing, height and density appropriate to its surroundings and, 
where an extension or alteration, appropriate to the existing building,

j) it is finished externally in materials, the colours and textures of which complement the 
highest quality of architecture in the locality and, where an extension or alteration, the 
existing building,

k) it is compatible with, and respects the character of the surrounding area, 
neighbouring uses, and neighbouring built form,

l) it can be satisfactorily accommodated within the site,
m) it provides appropriate boundary treatments to ensure attractive edges to the 

development that will help integration with its surroundings,
n) it incorporates, where appropriate, adequate safety and security measures, in 

accordance with current guidance on ‘designing out crime’.

Accessibility 
o) Street layouts must be designed to properly connect and integrate with existing street 

patterns and be able to be easily extended in the future where appropriate in order to 
minimise the need for turning heads and isolated footpaths,

p) it incorporates, where required, access for those with mobility difficulties,
q) it ensures there is no adverse impact on road safety, including but not limited to the 

site access,
r) it provides for linkages with adjoining built up areas including public transport 

connections and provision for buses, and new paths and cycleways, linking where 
possible to the existing path network; Travel Plans will be encouraged to support 
more sustainable travel patterns,

s) it incorporates adequate access and turning space for vehicles including those used 
for waste collection purposes.

Greenspace, Open Space & Biodiversity
t) It provides meaningful open space that wherever possible, links to existing open 

spaces and that is in accordance with current Council standards pending preparation 
of an up-to-date open space strategy and local standards. In some cases a 
developer contribution to wider neighbourhood or settlement provision may be 
appropriate, supported by appropriate arrangements for maintenance,

u) it retains physical or natural features or habitats which are important to the amenity or 
biodiversity of the area or makes provision for adequate mitigation or replacements.

Developers are required to provide design and access statements, design briefs and 
landscape plans as appropriate.

Page 260



LIST OF POLICIES

POLICY ED3: TOWN CENTRES AND SHOPPING DEVELOPMENT

The Council will seek to develop and enhance the role of town centres. A network of centres 
and growth of the retail sector will be supported through directing development to the 
following district town centres:

Duns, Eyemouth, Galashiels, Hawick, Jedburgh, Kelso, Melrose, Peebles, Selkirk

To protect town centres, town centre locations will be preferred to edge-of-centre locations 
which, in turn, will be preferred to out-of-centre locations. An out-of- centre location will only 
be considered where there is no suitable site available in a town centre or edge-of-centre 
location.

The council will support a wide range of uses appropriate to a town centre. Proposals for 
shopping development and other town centre developments will generally be approved 
within defined district town centres provided that the character, vitality, viability, and mixed 
use nature of the town centre will be maintained and enhanced. For the avoidance of doubt, 
the council will apply the preferred order of locations set out above to appropriate uses 
generating significant footfall, including community and cultural facilities, offices, libraries, 
and education and healthcare facilities as well as retail and commercial leisure uses. It will 
also ensure that different uses are developed in the most appropriate locations.

Town centre enhancement, including the provision of new retail facilities and complementary 
non-retail uses, will be encouraged in centres both within the hierarchy and other centres 
which:

a) are council priorities for area regeneration because of special economic difficulties 
and/or population  decline,
b) are subject to significant retail spending leakage,
c) play an important role in areas planned for substantial development under the 
development  strategy.

The council will have regard to the following considerations, where relevant, in assessing 
applications for out of centre development, including retail proposals:

a) the individual or cumulative impact of the proposed development on the vitality and 
viability of existing town centres,
b) the availability of a suitable town centre or edge of centre site,
c) the ability of the proposal to meet deficiencies in shopping provision which cannot be 
met in town centre or edge of centre locations,
d) the impact of the proposal on travel patterns and car usage,
e) the accessibility of the site by a choice of means of transport,
f) the preference for commercial centres in the preferred order of locations, including 
appropriate retail clusters and parks, over other out of centre locations,
g) the extent to which a proposal would constitute appropriate small scale shopping 
provision designed to serve the needs of local rural communities,
h) the location of the proposal. Sites will be located within existing settlements and, 
within them preference will be given to applications on vacant or derelict sites, or on sites 
deemed to be surplus to requirements.

The council will encourage the use of town centres during the evening provided residential 
amenity is protected. Any proposed development which would create an unacceptable 
adverse impact on the town centre will be refused.

Page 261



LIST OF POLICIES

POLICY ED4: CORE ACTIVITY AREAS IN TOWN CENTRES

To provide flexibility and maintain vitality and viability in the retail core of the town centre, 
core activity areas have been identified in Galashiels, Hawick, Peebles, Kelso, Selkirk, 
Melrose, Jedburgh, Duns and Eyemouth. In core activity areas a mix of uses appropriate to 
the town centre will be allowed. Class 1 and 3 of the Use Class Order are seen as 
appropriate uses within core activity areas.

Proposals for uses other than Class 1 and 3 at ground level in core activity areas will 
normally be refused.

Proposals for other uses including Class 2 will be assessed in terms of their contribution 
towards the core retail function of the area and will only be acceptable where there is a 
significant positive contribution to the core retail function.

Other uses, such as residential, are encouraged above shops and other town centre uses.

POLICY EP7: LISTED BUILDINGS

The Council will support development proposals that conserve, protect, and enhance the
character, integrity and setting of Listed Buildings.

Internal or external alterations and extensions to Listed Buildings, or new developments
within their curtilage, must meet the following criteria:

a) be of the highest quality,
b) respect the original structure in terms of setting, scale, design and materials, whilst 

not inhibiting contemporary and/or innovative design;
c) maintain, and should preferably enhance, the special architectural or historic quality 

of the building;
a) demonstrate an understanding of the building’s significance.

All applications for Listed Building Consent or applications affecting the setting of Listed
Buildings will be required to be supported by Design Statements.

New development that adversely affects the setting of a Listed Building will not be permitted.

The demolition of a Listed Building will not be permitted unless there are overriding 
environmental, economic, social or practical reasons. It must be satisfactorily demonstrated 
that every effort has been made to continue the present use or to find a suitable new use.

POLICY EP9: CONSERVATION AREAS

The Council will support development proposals within or adjacent to a Conservation Area 
which are located and designed to preserve or enhance the special architectural or historic 
character and appearance of the Conservation Area.  This should accord with the scale, 
proportions, alignment, density, materials, and boundary treatment of nearby buildings, open 
spaces, vistas, gardens and landscapes.

The Council may require applications for full, as opposed to Planning Permission in Principle 
Consent.  

Conservation Area Consent, which is required for the demolition of an unlisted building 
within a Conservation Area, will only be considered in the context of appropriate proposals 
for redevelopment and will only be permitted where:

Page 262



LIST OF POLICIES

a) the building is incapable  of reasonably beneficial  use by virtue of its location, 
physical form or state of disrepair, and
b) the structural condition of the building is such that it can not be adapted to 
accommodate alterations or extensions without material loss to its character, and
c) the proposal will preserve or enhance the Conservation Area, either individually or as 
part of the townscape.

In cases a) to c) above, demolition will not be permitted to proceed until acceptable 
alternative treatment of the site has been approved and a contract for the replacement 
building or for an alternative means of treating the cleared site has been agreed. 

Design Statements will be required for all applications for alterations, extensions, or for 
demolition and replacement which should explain and illustrate the design principles and 
design concepts of the proposals.

POLICY HD3: PROTECTION OF RESIDENTIAL AMENITY

Development that is judged to have an adverse impact on the amenity of existing or 
proposed residential areas will not be permitted. To protect the amenity and character of 
these areas, any developments will be assessed against:

a) the principle of the development, including where relevant, any open space that 
would be lost; and

b) the details of the development itself particularly in terms of:
(i) the scale, form and type of development in terms of its fit within a residential area,
(ii) the impact of the proposed development on the existing and surrounding properties 

particularly in terms of overlooking, loss of privacy and sunlighting provisions. These 
considerations apply especially in relation to garden ground or ‘backland’ 
development, 

(iii) the generation of traffic or noise,
(iv) the level of visual impact.

POLICY IS7: PARKING PROVISIONS AND STANDARDS

Development proposals should provide for car and cycle parking in accordance with 
approved standards. 

Relaxation of technical standards will be considered where appropriate due to the nature of 
the development and/or if positive amenity gains can be demonstrated that do not 
compromise road safety.

In town centres where there appear to be parking difficulties, the Council will consider the
desirability of seeking additional public parking provision, in the context of policies to  
promote the use of sustainable travel modes.

OTHER MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS

 SBC Supplementary Planning Guidance on Shop Fronts and Shop Signs 2011
 SBC Retail Survey 2016
 Connected Borders 2017-2022
 Historic Environment Scotland Policy Statement 2016
 Scottish Planning Policy 2014

Page 263



LIST OF POLICIES

 ‘National Review of Town Centres External Advisory Group Report: Community and 
Enterprise in Scotland’s Town Centres' 2013

 ‘Town Centre Action Plan’ Scottish Government  2013

Page 264


	Agenda
	4a Notice of Review
	Item 4(a) - Notice of Review (2)
	Item 4(a) - Notice of Review (3)
	Item 4(a) - Notice of Review (4)
	Item 4(a) - Notice of Review (5)
	Item 4(a) - Notice of Review (6)
	Item 4(a) - Notice of Review (7)
	Item 4(a) - Notice of Review (8)
	Item 4(a) - Notice of Review (9)
	Item 4(a) - Notice of Review (10)
	Item 4(a) - Notice of Review (11)

	4b Officer's Report
	4c List of Policies
	5a Notice of Review
	Item 5(a) Notice of Review (2)
	Item 5(a) Notice of Review (3)
	Item 5(a) Notice of Review (4)
	Item 5(a) Notice of Review (5)

	5b Papers referred to in Officer's Report
	5c List of policies
	6a Notice of Review
	Item 6(a) - Notice of Review (2)
	Item 6(a) - Notice of Review (3)

	6b Papers referred to in Officer's Report
	6c Consultations
	6d Support comments
	6e Additional representation
	6f List of Policies

